THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

RECEIVED

In The Court of Appeals

MAR 09 2017

Appellate Case No. 2016-001037

SC Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM NEWBERRY COUNTY  
Court of Common Pleas

R. Lawton McIntosh, Circuit Court Judge

Case No. 2015-CP-36-00120

Oien Family Investments, LLC.....Appellant

v.

Piedmont Municipal Power Agency.....Respondent

**FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT**

Thomas H. Pope III  
Kyle B. Parker  
PO Box 190  
1508 College Street  
Newberry, SC 29108  
Phone: 803-276-2532; Fax: 803-276-8684  
Email: thpope@popeandhudgens.com

Attorneys for Appellant Oien Family Investments, LLC

##

## STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN GRANTING A DIRECTED VERDICT FOR RESPONDENT PMPA AND IN FAILING TO GRANT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF TO APPELLANT OIEN WHERE ITS AMENDED ORDER FAILED TO PROPERLY APPLY THE HOLDING IN SOUTHERN DEVELOPMENT AND TO FIND THAT RESPONDENT PMPA VIOLATED THE APPLICABLE INDUSTRY STANDARD FOR ROUTE SELECTION
  - A. The Lower Court Failed To Appreciate That The Route Selection Requirements Of Southern Development And The Applicable Industry Standard Were Violated by PMPA
  - B. The Record Shows That PMPA Did Not Understand What It Was Required To Do and Failed To Conduct the Alternate Route Analyses Required.
  - C. It Was Reversible Error For The Lower Court To Grant PMPA's Motion for Directed Verdict
  
- II. THE LOWER COURT MADE ERRONEOUS FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW WHICH WERE CONTRARY TO THE RECORD AND WHICH DISREGARDED OR MISINTERPRETED THE HOLDING IN SOUTHERN DEVELOPMENT.
  - A. The Court Erred In Its Finding No. 17 (Amended Order) In Ruling That "Because Oien Restricted Access To The Property That Neither PMPA Nor Newberry Completed The Southern Route Engineering Plan," As This Finding Is Not Supported In The Record.
  - B. The Court Erred In Its Finding No. 26 Which Stated That "Transmission Lines Should Be Constructed As Nearly Straight As Practicable" Because That Statement Relies On A 65 Year Old Case Which Was Overruled By Southern Development.
  - C. The Lower Court Erred In Making Its Finding No. 29 To The Effect That "There Is No Legal Requirement For PMPA To Conform To The Standard Created By Mr. Rogers Which Involves Numerous Written And Detailed Alternate Route Studies" Where The Record Does Not Support Such Finding.

- D. The Court Erred In The Last Sentence Of Finding No. 29 In Finding That Mr. Rogers “Admitted” That If PMPA Had Considered The Southern Development Factors It Had Not Abused Its Discretion Even If No Written Studies Were Performed Where The Record Reflects Rogers Said To Do A Route Analysis “Mentally” Without A Writing In Support Was “Not Probable” And That PMPA Had Not Followed The Industry Standard.
- E. The Court’s Finding No. 32 Is Not Supported By The Evidence. Finding No. 32 States That The Plaintiff Brought This Action Not For A Legitimate Purpose But In An Attempt To Reroute The Transmission Line Off The Oiens’ Property.
- F. The Court Erred In Making Finding No. 35 About The Oiens’ “Intent,” As There Is No Evidence Of Oiens’ Intent Other Than To Challenge PMPA Based On The Holding Of Southern Development.
- G. The Court Erred In Finding Nos. 37 And 38 Which Assert That The Oiens Are Trying To “Force” PMPA To Relocate The Line For Other Than Legitimate Legal Reasons Which Findings Are Not Supported By The Record.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In this appeal, plaintiff-appellant Oien Family Investments, LLC (“Oien” or “Appellant”), seeks reversal of the Amended Order of the Circuit Court which denied the injunctive relief sought in the Complaint under S.C. Code §28-2-470 and granted PMPA’s motion for directed verdict. Appellant’s position was based on respondent PMPA’s failure to perform the objective route analysis set forth in Southern Development v. S.C. Public Service Authority, 305 S.C. 507, 409 S.E. 2d 428 (Ct. App. 1991), aff’d as modified 311 S.C. 29, 426 S.E. 2d 748 (1993).

The PMPA (“PMPA” or “Respondent”) notice of condemnation was served on the appellant on or about February 9, 2015. The notice concerned the location of an electric transmission line across appellant’s property. Thereafter, appellant timely filed and served its Summons and Complaint dated March 6, 2015, challenging PMPA’s right to take its chosen route through the middle of appellant’s property rather than along the southern border of appellant’s property. The Complaint sought an injunction against Respondent. The Answer and Counterclaim of respondent PMPA were filed on or about March 23, 2015. The Answer asserted that the chosen route, a straight line bisecting the Oien property, was the appropriate route and the only viable alternative for PMPA. It denied the allegations of the Complaint and asserted a counterclaim for attorney’s fees.

Appellant Oien’s Reply was timely filed and served on or about April 9, 2015. It denied the counterclaim and asserted the defense of unclean hands as to PMPA’s conduct.

Discovery was conducted, including production of the entire PMPA file, as well as the depositions of the parties, witnesses for the parties, and that of the Oiens' two expert witnesses.

The trial of the case was conducted by the Honorable R. Lawton McIntosh, Circuit Judge, on March 28 and 29, 2016. All of Appellant's trial exhibits (Nos. 1-43) were admitted into evidence without objection of counsel for respondent PMPA. (R. p. 290, lines 8-23). The court took testimony from witnesses of both parties. The lower court on April 27, 2016, issued its Order, submitted as a proposed Order by PMPA, which denied relief to appellant and granted a directed verdict for PMPA. Appellant filed a motion for reconsideration and motion to alter or amend on May 6, 2016. The Court issued an Amended Order dated May 9, 2016. (R. p. 16-26). It also found that the most feasible route for the transmission line was through the middle of the Oien property. On May 17, 2016, Appellant Oien filed its motion for reconsideration and motion to alter or amend the Amended Order. (R. p. 99-115). In its Form 4 Orders dated May 16, 2016, and May 17, 2016, the lower court denied the motions to reconsider. (R. p. 27-28; R. p. 29-30).

The motion to reconsider the Amended Order was premised on the fact that Respondent PMPA's chosen route was arbitrary; PMPA failed to employ an objective comparative route analysis; PMPA made a route decision through the middle of the Oien property without properly assessing the costs to acquire the land and the construction costs of both its chosen middle route and the southern route requested by appellant Oien; PMPA determined incorrectly that the land acquisition costs were identical on all 15 properties through which the PMPA transmission land crossed; PMPA failed to adhere to

the transmission industry standard for route selection identified without contradiction by appellant's expert Rogers; and, PMPA purported to have done a "mental" route selection process but produced no note or document reflecting any comparative route analysis, and there was no factual basis to support the determination – all in contravention to the holding of the Supreme Court in Southern Development v. S.C. Public Service Authority, 305 S.C. 507, 409 S.E. 2d 428 (Ct. App. 1991), aff'd as modified, 311 S.C. 29, 426 S.E. 2d 748 (1993). As set forth in Appellant's motion to reconsider, had PMPA performed a comparative route analysis consistent with Southern Development and as identified by Appellant's expert, it would have concluded that the southern route requested by Appellant, based on all the applicable factors, was the preferred route.

On May 18, 2016, appellant filed its Notice of Appeal, as well as its petition/motion for Enforcement of Statutory Automatic Stay, Injunction and/or Supersedes. On May 18, 2016, the Court of Appeals issued its Order, by Judge Stephanie McDonald, granting appellant's Motion for Stay, Injunction, and/or Supersedes. (R. pp. 31-32).

Respondent filed a motion to lift the stay or require bond on May 20, 2016. Appellant filed a Return in Opposition to that motion on May 31, 2016. The Court of Appeals granted respondent's motion to lift the stay on October 18, 2016. (R. p. 31). Appellant on October 20, 2016, filed its motion to reconsider that Order and a memorandum in support of same. (R. pp. 99-115).

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

### A. Background

Oien Family Investments, LLC, which was created by Lynn and June Oien, owns 116 acres in Newberry County. The property was purchased in June 2005 for the construction of Mr. & Mrs. Oien's retirement home. (R. p. 256, lines 3-25; R. p. 285, lines 2-7). The per acre purchase price was approximately \$3,500. (R. p. 285, lines 2-7).

The Oiens had been looking for retirement estate property and Mr. Oien described the 116-acre tract "almost like a plantation"; it was very pristine, secluded, yet close to the city, the hospital, and three miles from downtown Newberry. After purchasing the property, he made substantial improvements to the property such as constructing a 7,000 square foot shop building to house his equipment (track hoes, tractors, mowers, etc.). He spent \$160,000 in the construction of this building and the installation of a well and septic tank. He also constructed roads and prepared his retirement home site by clearing the timber and grading the property himself. (R. p. 256, line 24 – p. 258, line 13).

Mr. Oien entered a contract for a large log home in 2008. (R. p. 259, lines 5-23; R. p. 261, lines 1-22; R. 276, lines 11-24; R. p. 653-656). The contract was for materials in the total amount of \$600,000. The construction costs on this home, including labor, was between \$900,000 to \$1,000,000. He paid \$78,588 in September 2008 for the plans for this home and the down payment on the materials. (R. p. 259, lines 10-23; R. p. 654). Because 2008 was a bad economic year, he could not carry through with the contract then, but he obtained an extension and the contract is still valid. (R. p. 259, lines 10-12; R. p. 261, lines 1-2).

**B. PMPA Actions (2013 Through Service  
of Notice of Condemnation on 2/9/2015)**

PMPA is a joint agency formed by ten municipal electric utilities in the upstate of South Carolina. PMPA provides wholesale electric services to its members. (R. p. 154, lines 12-17). PMPA has the power of eminent domain, and its assignment was to plan, design, select the route, and build the transmission line. The City of Newberry (“City”) is a member of PMPA, and it arranged with PMPA for the installation of a new substation near the Kraft Food plant for the electric needs of the City, including Kraft Food. (R. p. 154, lines 12-17; R. p. 156, lines 12-17).

The Oiens never received a notification or letter from PMPA about the project. The first they heard about the project is when they got an email from Misty West, a developer, dated February 25, 2013, to say that she heard that there was going to be a line through their property and her email recited that “there is no way you would willingly give an easement to cut your property in half.” (R. p. 162, lines 11-17; R. p. 269, lines 1-4; R. p. 700-702). Attached to the email was Ms. West’s drawing of a suggested southern route along their property. (R. p. 272, lines 14-17; R. p. 702). The Oiens assumed that someone from PMPA would be contacting them, but that never happened. PMPA never called or wrote Mr. Oien. (R. p. 280, lines 11-18; R. p. 515, lines 16-23). To that point, Mr. Oien was never briefed by the city or PMPA about what their intentions were. Ultimately, he found PMPA people on his property in the summer of 2013. (R. p. 296, lines 5-17). After that, he insisted on a meeting and the City gave him one in September 2013. He attended the meeting with his wife and forester Paul Major. He expressed to the City then that a route along his southern boundary was preferable because it was far

away from the home site, would not be visible from the home site, whereas, the middle route went right through the center of the property. (R. p. 273, lines 22-25). However, the City only wanted to talk about the middle route. (R. p. 273, line 22 – R. p. 275, line 4).

When Oien finally saw the middle route proposed by PMPA in the summer of 2013, he saw that the line went right through the center of the property, approximately 250 to 300 feet from the home site, and he was told that the transmission lines would 80 to 90 feet high. Mr. Oien was very unhappy about the route selected by PMPA because he had already invested significant time and money on his home site, substantial monies that he was going to invest to consummate his home site. (R. p. 259, line 2 – R. p. 261, line 2).

PMPA agreed to a meeting with Mr. Oien which was held at City Hall on November 26, 2013. At that meeting, the only meeting PMPA had with the Oiens (R. p. 181, line 3 – R. p. 182, line 3; R. p. 206, lines 18-19; R. p. 273, lines 1-4; R. p. 275, lines 5-23; R. p. 280, line 8 – R. p. 281, line 15; R. p. 287, lines 9-25; R. p. 332, line 11 – R. p. 333, line 18), Mr. Oien made it clear that he wanted the southern route. (R. p. 183, lines 11-16; R. p. 273, line 18 – R. p. 274, line 17; R. p. 275, lines 1-16; R. p. 279, lines 15-17; R. p. 280, line 11 – R. p. 281, line 15; R. p. 288, lines 4-20; R. p. 314, lines 12-17). PMPA asked if he would consider the middle route. He reluctantly said that he would, but had a number of questions about that route. PMPA informed him that they would need to do a survey in order to answer these questions, and he gave permission to do that. (R. p. 283, lines 1-11). At the November 26, 2013, meeting Oien had his house plans

with him to show them why the middle route was so problematic, but PMPA did not want to review them. (R. p. 287, lines 1-13).

After that meeting, months went by, and in March 2014 PMPA drew the middle route and sent it to Mr. Oien. The Oiens again expressed in March 2014 that they continued to believe the southern route was more practical for all concerned. However, they got no response from PMPA until August 2014 when PMPA sent the Oiens a right of way agreement describing the middle route. The Oiens rejected this agreement. (R. p. 289, lines 3-16). PMPA has never furnished any analysis, figures, or comparisons between the two routes that explained the basis for its rejection of the southern route. (R. p. 183, line 17 – R. p. 184, l. 5; R. p. 212, lines 5-24; R. p. 214, lines 5-8; R. p. 243, lines 15-21; R. p. 334, lines 14-24; R. p. 512, line 3 – R. p. 513, line 11).

The transmission line which is the subject of this action is the first transmission project ever undertaken by PMPA in Newberry County (R. p. 169, lines 12-14), and the City has never been involved with a transmission line project prior to this one. (R. p. 244, line 24 – R. p. 245, line 1). The transmission poles are to be 80' to 100' high. (R. p. 278, lines 10-13). The proposed line runs for 2.1 miles through 15 separate properties, from the power source at the Duke transmission line (which runs north-south for a distance of 1,500 feet through the Oien property) to a substation beside the Kraft Foods plant (R. p. 380, lines 3-19).

Mike Frazier is the Director of Engineering for PMPA, and he and General Manager Coleman Smoak made the final decisions regarding the transmission line and its route. (R. p. 169, line 24 – R. p. 170, line 3). PMPA had only done five previous transmission lines. Mr. Frazier had never heard of an alternate route analysis. (R. p. 183,

line 17 – R. p. 184, line 5). He said that PMPA had no guidelines referring to consideration of alternate routes. (R. p. 185, lines 7-12). He said this is because PMPA “only builds short lines.” (R. p. 185, lines 7-10). Be it a short or long line, Frazier agreed that the affect on the landowner is the same whether PMPA or SCE&G is building the transmission line. (R. p. 185, lines 13-15).

Frazier never met with the Oiens until they requested a meeting in November 2013. He also admitted that he had never had a discussion with the Oiens about their plans for the property, even though he is the one that made the routing decision. (R. p. 195, lines 17-23). Frazier indicated that even though it was his job to make the selection of routes, he went with his engineer’s recommendations and did no analyses himself. (R. p. 196, lines 17-23).

Mr. Frazier only became aware through discussions with the City of Newberry that the Oiens wanted the line to run on the southern route of their property line. (R. p. 183, lines 11-16; R. p. 273, line 19 – R. p. 274, line 17; R. p. 275, lines 1-16; R. p. 279, lines 15-17; R. p. 281, lines 13-15; R. p. 288, lines 4-15; R. p. 314, lines 12-17). Frazier said that there was no engineering ever done to see what the construction costs would be on the southern route. (R. p. 211, lines 4-21). He also said that he had seen nothing in writing that confirmed that there was anything unsuitable about the southern route. (R. p. 189, lines 20-23). Further, he had seen nothing in writing about what the increased costs, if any, would be for the southern route. (R. p. 189, line 24 – R. p. 190, line 1). Mr. Frazier never knew that the Oiens had spent substantial monies clearing the home site, building a well on the home site, installing underground electric power, and had made a down payment for the materials on the home. (R. p. 188, lines 3-24). He acknowledged

that he only learned in discovery that the plans that the Oiens had were not just an aspiration, but that they had a contractual commitment. (R. p. 247, line 5 – R. p. 248, line 4).

Frazier identified the fact that PMPA approved the line in February 2013 at a time when no one from PMPA had physically inspected the properties along the route. (R. p. 212, l. 15 – R. p. 213, l. 6). He indicated the routing of the line at that point was based strictly on a review of a Google Earth map and GIS maps. (R. p. 243, lines 2-19). He admitted that in February 2013 there was no analysis made for any routing along the Oien property—middle, southern, or otherwise. (R. p. 243, lines 15-21). Mr. Frazier acknowledged that PMPA never considered the total cost of the middle route versus the total cost of the southern route. (R. p. 214, lines 5-8). He admitted that it was feasible to use the southern route and that the southern route would be less likely to be seen from the Oien's home site. (R. p. 190, lines 2-17; R. p. 248; lines 22-24).

PMPA decided in early 2013 to do this transmission project. It sent no public notice of its plan. (R. p. 159, line 23 – R. p. 160, line 4). It did not write any affected landowners. (R. p. 21, lines 3-6; R. p. 268, line 16 – R. p. 269, line 15; R. p. 280, lines 11-21; R. p. 515, lines 16-18). PMPA'S position was that it asked the City of Newberry to contact the landowners about the PMPA project. Not a single city employee, including the City Utilities Director, had any prior experience with a transmission line project. (R. p. 244, line 24 – R. p. 245, line 1). PMPA did not train the City employees for their task. (R. p. 206, lines 21-24). In fact, Mr. Frazier, as PMPA's transmission director, had no knowledge of, or prior experience with, route selection criteria. (R. p. 191, lines 2-7; R. 213, lines 11-14). He had never heard of the requirements of Southern Development and

had never seen a route selection analysis comparing the relevant factors for alternate routes. (R. p. 191, lines 2-7; R. p. 213, lines 4-14).

The PMPA report of February 28, 2013, selecting the route, was issued before any notice went out to any landowner affected by the transmission route. (R. p. 212, line 25 – R. p. 213, line 5). While PMPA's tentative report (R. p. 737), listed several factors (environmental impact, land use, impact to individual landowners, costs for the route, and visual impact), the report contains no specific reference to how these factors were considered. The PMPA report was based on only two resources: Google Earth and Newberry County GIS maps (R. p. 479, lines 13-18; R. p. 546, lines 2-5), and was submitted prior to PMPA talking to any landowner or visiting any landowner's property. (T. p. 515, lines 16-18; R. p. 212, line 25 – R. p. 213, line 5). PMPA proposed no subsequent report which contained any comparative analysis for any of the alternate routes. (T. p. 546, lines 2-5). Plaintiff's expert Bill Rogers testified that because this temporary report was prepared without any site visits, PMPA's process of route selection did not meet the standards of the industry and was arbitrary and capricious. (R. p. 796).

PMPA during 2013 also drew northern and southern routes across the Oien property. Because the northern route was too close to the home site of the Oiens and because PMPA did not want the northern route, it was rejected by all parties. (R. p. 168, lines 9-16; R. p. 372, lines 3-5). PMPA preferred the middle route because it was a straight line through the Oiens' property. (R. p. 191, lines 12-17; R. p. 483, lines 21-24; R. p. 519, lines 15-23). Despite the Oiens' objections and despite its having taken steps to actually draw other routes through their property, PMPA never provided any route justifications to plaintiff or conducted any comparative analysis of the middle or the

southern routes. (R. p. 183, line 17 – R. p. 184, line 5; R. p. 212, lines 5-14; R. p. 214, lines 5-8; R. p. 243, lines 15-21).

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