STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM NEWBERRY COUNTY
R. Lawton McIntosh, Circuit Court Judge

RECEIVED

MAR 16 2017

SC Court of Appeals

Appellate Case No.: 2016-001037

Oien Family Investments, LLC,Appellant

v.

Piedmont Municipal Power Agency,Respondent

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

O. W. Bannister (SC Bar No. 506)
Bruce W. Bannister (SC Bar No. 15679)
Luke A. Burke (S.C. Bar No. 100033)
P. O. Box 10007 (29603)
401 Pettigru Street (29601)
Greenville, SC 29603
Phone: 864-298-0084
Fax: 864-298-0146
Attorneys for Respondent

March 13, 2017

Other Counsel of Record:

Thomas H. Pope, III, Esq.
Kyle B. Parker, Esq.
Pope and Hudgens, PA
P.O. Box 190
Newberry, SC 29108

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

ARGUMENT

I. THE LOWER COURT DID NOT ERR IN REFUSING TO GRANT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF TO THE APPELLANT BECAUSE THE RESPONDENT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN SELECTING THE ROUTE FOR ITS TRANSMISSION LINE.

The Oiens appeal the order of the trial judge that found PMPA did not abuse its discretion in selecting one route over another upon which to build its transmission line

over their property. Oien asserts PMPA's choice of routes lacked a factual basis because no adequate written study was done by PMPA to compare land acquisition and engineering costs of the southern route preferred by Oien.

In support of their position that written, alternate route studies are necessary before PMPA can exercise its discretion on a factual basis, Oien cites So. Dev. Land & Golf Co. v. SC Pub. Serv. Auth., 305 S.C. 507, 409 S.E.2d 428 (Ct. App., 1991) (Southern I) aff'd as modified, 311 S.C. 29, 426 S.E.2d 748 (1993) (Southern II).

In Southern I, the Court of Appeals reviewed a Master's decision estopping Santee Cooper from condemning and using an existing right-of-way across a golf course and finding that Santee Cooper had abused its discretion by not considering land acquisition costs. According to the Master, the route chosen by Santee Cooper had a land acquisition cost of \$5,762,000 while the alternate routes had land acquisition costs of \$1,284,000 and \$1,315,000. The Master also found the alternate routes were somewhat safer and more aesthetically pleasing. The decision in Southern I does not make clear how the Master determined the land acquisition costs.

The Master relied on a Florida case for the factors he considered in his decision of holding that Santee Cooper also abused its discretion. In Florida Power & Light Co. v. Berman, 429 So.(2d) 79 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 1983) the court held that a condemning authority had to weigh the following criteria in determining a condemnation: (1) availability of an alternate route; (2) cost; (3) environmental factors; (4) long-range planning; and (5) safety considerations. An abuse of discretion occurs when a route is selected without weighing and considering these factors.

In the Florida case, the condemning authority was not allowed to condemn its chosen route because of the environmental impact. The court held, "If the transmission lines go along Old Sherman Road, there will be substantial destruction of this unique ecological niche because of the removal of trees and the intrusion of sunlight, which will allow many weeds to grow which do not grow in that area at this time. It will then cause a change in the ecological character of the road area." *Id.* at p. 80.

In reviewing the Master's decision in Southern I, the Court of Appeals observed that there were no South Carolina cases finding the condemning authority had abused its discretion. The Court also observed that in the reported cases there was no outline of what constituted a clear abuse of discretion in the condemnation context.

The Court of Appeals went on to hold that Santee Cooper had established legitimate criteria for rational decision making by utilizing the factors of safety, reliability, aesthetics, and cost. The Court of Appeals held this list was not exclusive and there may be other criteria utilized. In the Santee Cooper case, however, the failure to consider land acquisition costs indicated a lack of a factual basis.

In remanding the case to the Master, the Court Appeals said:

We vacate this portion of the master's decision and remand with instruction that the master direct Santee Cooper to reevaluate its proposed route and the alternate routes proposed by Southern. In this evaluation, Santee Cooper should consider its criteria of safety, reliability, aesthetics, and costs along with any other appropriate factors such as environmental conditions and long range area planning by public authorities. The cost factor should include land acquisition cost. Santee Cooper should then exercise its discretion in the choice of a route based upon a reasoned analysis of the relevant factors. By this opinion we do not imply that any route previously considered is eliminated from the consideration process or that any new route cannot be considered. We simply hold that a condemning authority must exercise its discretion by a rational decision making process which is supported by facts. (Southern I at 516, 517)

On a grant of certiorari, Southern II, the Supreme Court addressed the abuse of discretion issue with this comment:

Accordingly, we affirm the Master's order enjoining Santee Cooper from proceeding with the condemnation of the easement in question. Although we agree with the Court of Appeals' analysis of the issue of abuse of discretion, in light of our holding on the question of estoppel, we find the remand as ordered by the Court of Appeals unnecessary. (Southern II at 751)

Most of Oien's arguments are based on flawed or doubtful interpretations of the Southern cases. For example, in its Argument I(a) Oien states that a basic requirement of Southern is that PMPA "must have some writing to support 'a rational decision-making process'". Apparently this conclusion is based on the comment by the Court of Appeals found on page 516, So. Dev. Land & Golf Co. v. SC Pub. Serv. Auth., 305 S.C. 507, "When Santee Cooper employees considered the alternate routes proposed by Southern, their cost estimates presented to the board of directors did not include land acquisition costs. No notes or memoranda were kept by Santee Cooper employees of their analysis."

If the Court of Appeals required written documents to be a basic requirement in condemnation cases, it certainly did not say so.

Another example of Oien's overreach on its interpretation of the Southern cases is found in Argument II(B) which Oien contends the Southern cases overruled Bookhart v. Central Electric Power Co-op, 219 S.C. 414, 65 S.E.2d 781 (1951). The Bookhart decision stated at p. 432:

'Economic and engineering considerations require such lines to be constructed as nearly straight as practicable, and there is no other feasible route for the line except the route across the lands in question, because any other route would increase the length of the line by several miles, and the cost would be substantially increased by reason of the additional guy wires, anchors and appropriate structures which would be necessitated at each of four additional angles.' The factual issue of the necessity is for

trial by the Court, an impartial tribunal, which satisfies the State and Federal constitutional requirements of due process of law and affords equal protection of the law.

The Bookhart decision is not mentioned in either Southern opinion.

The Oien argument that PMPA abused its discretion is primarily based on the lack of a written alternate route study of the southern route.

In regard to land acquisition costs, Alan Cobb, the utility engineer, initially estimated land acquisition costs at \$100,000 based on land value of \$5,000 per acre (R. p. 507, line 21 – p. 508, line 13). The value per acre is essentially the same as found by Oien's appraiser, Paul Major, who valued the land at \$5,200 per acre (R. p. 325, line 17) David Graydon, an MAI appraiser and stipulated to be an expert real estate appraiser (R. p. 445, lines 9-10), valued Oien's property at \$5,000 per acre (R. p. 448, lines 4-8).

By all testimony the preliminary middle route passed over undeveloped fields and woodlands. This route was selected after consultation between PMPA's engineer Frazier, Cobb, and Newberry's utilities manager, Regier (R. p. 478, lines 5-19). After the tentative route was selected, the record makes clear that Oien was consulted. After several changes were requested by Oien, Cobb walked the southern route which crossed over the pond. He concluded that PMPA could not tap the Duke Energy line where Oien wanted it tapped (R. p. 497, lines 4-18). He also concluded the southern route would be very difficult and more costly. The southern route had at least two turns, one about 45 degrees and the about 30 degrees (R. p. 186, lines 14-20). Frazier estimated the additional turns would add \$30,000 to \$40,000 expense (R. p. 200, lines 22-25). The additional pole and installation cost for the southern route was estimated to be \$200,000

(R. p. 498, lines 10-24). Finally, crossing the Oien pond could cause Corp of Engineers and environmental problems (R. p. 498, line 25 – p. 501, lines 12).

Oien attempted to overcome the increased cost of the southern route in two ways. The first was to have its appraiser Major testify he would damage the entire 116 acre tract an average of 10 to 20 percent or more if the line is on the middle route. At 20 percent damage to the entire 116 acres the damages would be \$116,000 (R. p. 328, line 5 – p. 329, line 13). In other words, Major damaged acreage from which the middle route transmission line cannot be seen.

On the southern route Major did not damage any of the remainder of the Oiens property (R. p. 330, line 2 – p. 331, line 8), even though the line would be easily visible across the pond from the existing home. Major supported this conclusion by using the Oiens' assessment that the remainder would not be damaged.

Major's appraisal relies upon subjective feelings of the landowner and should be rejected out of hand. It flies in the face of reason, experience and common sense to damage the entire 116 acre tract the same percent regardless of how far the acreage is from the power line. While estimates differ as to the distance of the line from the proposed home site, PMPA's appraiser Graydon testified the proposed home site to be over 300 feet from the line. Major estimated the distance at 400 feet (R. p. 326, line 25 – p. 327, line 5). Oien estimates 250 to 300 feet (R. p. 278, lines 1-4).

PMPA's appraiser Graydon testified that in his studies he found that unless a house is within 300 feet or less to a transmission line, the remainder did not lose value (R. p. 449, lines 3-22).

The proposed southern route takes the line near the Oiens' existing residence and over a four (4) acre pond. Reason cannot reconcile why the line on the southern route does not damage any acreage. Lynn Oien himself was ambivalent concerning the damages from the southern route. When asked, he first said there was no damage (R. p. 286, lines 11-13). On cross examination he damages the remainder at \$30,000 (R. p. 308, line 24 – p. 309, line 7).

The Oiens rely on the testimony of their main witness, William Rogers (Rogers) to make their argument that the land acquisition costs of the southern route are less than the middle route. In addition, his testimony supports the Oiens' contention that the southern route was cheaper overall than the middle route and that PMPA did not comply with the Southern I criteria. Rogers was qualified as an expert on procedure for land acquisition and condemnation (R. p. 366, lines 5-24). He testified that he has no experience in land valuation or engineering. He submitted a report as to his alternate route studies. (R. p. 786 - 797)

According to Rogers' route study, the middle route is 2,200 feet+/- in length and requires 3.95 +/- acres at \$5,200 per acre for a right-of-way cost of \$182,960. This figure includes damaging the remaining 112 acres 15 percent. Rogers damaged the "proposed residential development at \$75,000", which he stated was from Major's report (R. p. 788). In fact, Major's report (R. p. 809) only uses the figure of \$75,000 once and with this comment, "Also, the Oiens have spent in excess of \$75,000 for preparation of their planned home site, including drilling a well, grading the home site, and obtaining buried electrical service from Newberry Electric Cooperative for this home site which would not be useable if the northern route were selected." [Emphasis added].

According to Rogers' route study the southern route contains approximately 5.51 acres and is 3,200 feet +/- in length. Rogers does not damage any remainder because Oien told him not to (R. p. 397, lines 13-17). Thus Rogers found the southern route right-of-way costs \$28,650. The total southern route right-of-way cost according to Rogers is \$29,100.

Rogers did not use Cobb's estimate of the costs of construction in his report although Cobb is an engineer with a lifetime of experience in costs of construction for utilities and had actually walked the southern route. Instead Rogers used the costs of a line built by another utility on entirely different property. Rogers did not factor in the additional costs of going over a pond. By using the average cost from another line and applying it to the current length of the middle route and to the southern route, Rogers found the middle route had less construction and engineering costs but was more expensive because of the land acquisition costs.

Thus Rogers' alternate route study of the costs of the middle route contains an error in costs of \$75,000 which according to Major belongs only to the northern route. Correcting the error brings Rogers' cost analysis down to \$107,960 ($\$182,960 - \$75,000 = \$107,960$).

By correcting Rogers' error in his costs, Rogers total cost for the middle route was \$289,200 versus \$292,710 for the southern route. If one adds Cobb's estimated additional costs of \$200,000 to \$240,000 to Rogers' figures for the southern route, one gets a huge cost differential in favor of the middle route.

The trial court had before it two estimates of the land acquisition costs – PMPA's Graydon of \$21,075 and Oien's Major of \$107,960. As Rogers testified no one really

knows for certain what the land acquisition cost will be until a jury speaks (R. p. 386, lines 21-24).

Given the conflicting evidence of the costs of the project, the trial court did not err in finding that PMPA had a factual basis for choosing the middle route as regards costs to include land acquisition costs.

The Oiens also used Rogers to opine that PMPA did not comply with the criteria in the Southern cases. The basis for this contention is that PMPA did not do an adequate alternate route study. Rogers testified that such a study would include bringing in design engineers, environmental engineers, consultant biologists that would do a wetland study and also consider wetland resource implications (R. p. 375, lines 17-20). All these experts would add costs to the project and would come to the same conclusion Cobb reached – the southern route was longer, required more construction costs and may have wetland issues. It cannot rationally be argued that choosing a shorter, less expensive route does not have a factual basis.

It is not uncommon to have dueling experts in court cases. It is Hornbook law that the trier of fact may give such weight to an expert's opinion as the trier concludes that opinion deserves.

In conclusion, the Oiens argue that no rational decision can be made unless there is written paperwork to support it. Thus the writing becomes more important than the knowledge, experience, on the ground observations, and collaborations among the responsible parties who make the decision.

In selecting the middle route, PMPA chose a shorter, cheaper, and less costly route to construct a line which currently is not visible from any existing residence closer

than 600 feet. While the land acquisition costs are disputed, PMPA has Graydon's appraisal which it relied on and certainly PMPA's decision cannot be said not to have a factual basis. Further, PMPA could not have relied on Major's report even if it was accurate because Major's report was completed after this case was filed. In that regard, much of the Oiens land acquisition costs comes from their contention that they could see the power line from a house they have yet to build. Yet their choice of the southern route will place the line near homes that are already built and occupied by families that will be closer to the line than the Oiens.

The burden is on the Oiens to prove PMPA made its decision for the middle route without a factual basis and they failed to do so. Sease v. City of Spartanburg, 242 S.C. 520, 131 S.E.2d 683 (1963).

II. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT MAKE ERRONEOUS FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW BECAUSE THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY INTERPRETED THE HOLDING IN THE SOUTHERN CASES.

A. The Oiens complain because the trial court referred to the Oiens' restriction of access to their land. Lynn Oien complained that a surveyor had gone on the property without permission and he considered that a trespass (R. p. 282 lines 2-25) (R. p. 296, line 11 – p. 297, line 9). Oiens' forester, Major, called Todd Guy and wanted to know who gave Guy permission to be on the Oien property (R. p. 564, line 17 – p. 565, line 13).

After the November, 2013 meeting, PMPA received permission to survey the middle route.

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